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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of

Ramkrishna Casting Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as JMT Auto Limited)

Report on the Audit of Financial Statement
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial Statements of Ramkrishna Casting Solutions
Limited (Formerly known as JMT Auto Limited) (the Company™), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
and notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principle
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements,

Key audit matters

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.
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Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion & Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management and Board of Director’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these F inancial Statements that give a true and fajr view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of
the Act,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantce that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements,




As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also-

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
coneern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our

* Evaiuate the overal] presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fajr presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(1) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those bo;;ks-:
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¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there
under;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure A”,

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197( 16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, we further report that:

(i} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Financial Statements — Refer Note - 35 on Contingent Liabilities to the Ind AS Financial
Statements;

(ii) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses in long term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2025;

(ili) There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) by the Company.

(iv). (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner




whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and {b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

{v). The company had not declared or paid any dividend during the year, therefore compliance
with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

(vi). Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with during the course of our audit. The company has preserved audit trail
log as per the statutory requirement of record retention and were available for audit.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure “B”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

For § K Naredi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No -003333C

(Rahul Naredi)
Partner
M. No - 302632

UDIN - 25302632BMJBIY2771

Jamshedpur, India.
May 29, 2025



Annexure — A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ramkrishna Casting
Solutions Limited (formerly known as JMT Auto Limited) (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of-financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accorddnee with: generally accepted accounting principles. A
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company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 8 K Naredi & Co
Chartered Accountants
) ICAI Firm Regn. No: -
.v\l\RED/(f 003333C

b

(Rahul Naredi)
Partner
M No.: 302632

UDIN - 25302632BMJBIY2771

Jamshedpur, India.
May 29, 2025



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of Ramkrishna Casting Solutions Limited (formerly known as JMT
Auto Limited) of even date]

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) As explained to us all the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its
assets. As informed to us no materials discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(©) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on
which building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title
deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the
financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) As explained to us, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 Crore, in
aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets of the company. Based on the records examined by us
in the normal course of audit of the financial statement, the quarterly returns/statements
filed by the Company with such banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts of
the Company and same has been disclosed in Note — 18.3 of the financial statement.

iii. The Company has not invested nor provided guarantee or security or granted loans and advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsuwre‘dﬂuompames firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or other parties covered in the registef n},lm{amcc}\under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the provision of pamom,()h X(IE: lhc,(jrder is not applicable to the company.
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vi.

vii.

viil.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the
Company has not granted any loan, made any investments and provided any guarantees and
securities to any person specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the provision of paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1} of section 148 of the Act in respect of the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) in our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax.,
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax. Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any disputes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, para 3(viii) of
the Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment dues of any loans or
borrowing from any lender.

(b) The Company has been declared wilful defaulter by any bank in the previous year and
there is no addition to this declaration during the year under audit.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long-term purposes.

(€) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries.

(H The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiary or joint ventures and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.




X1,

xil.

Xiii.

Xiv,

XV.

xvi.

xvil.

Xviii.

XiX.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares and company had
utilized the fund raised for the purposes for which same had been raised.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

()] No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation
made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered. the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45- 1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b} In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exisf.’q as on the date of the audit report indicating that
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XX,

XXI.

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company does not fulfil the criteria
as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the companies (corporate social
responsibility policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

For S K Naredi & Co
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No - 003333C

R

. + (Rahul Naredi)
ICA ,\,ﬁ'-',;;,\Parmer

Reg No. ;". M.No — 302632
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Jamshedpur, India.
May 29, 2025




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITEPD (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)

9th Floor, 23, Circus Avenue, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700017
CIN; U42274WB1997PLC277411

Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Note No, As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment 4 23,882.74 7.327.50
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4{a) 14,401.82 3,528,406
(¢) Intangible assets 5 - -
{d) Right-of-use assets 6 531.66 79.68
{e) Financial assets
(1) Invesiments 7 6.00 6.00
(ii} Loans 9 - -
(iii) Other financial assets 10 320.61 314,59
{f) Non-current tax assets (net) 12(a) . -
{g) Other non-current assets 13 13.80 893.47
39,156.63 12,149.70
Current assets
{a) Inventories 14 8,158.29 1,890.27
{b) Financial assels
(i) [nvestments 7 . .
{ii) Trade receivables 8 2,560.47 141.33
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 15(a) 5.53 198.64
{iv} Bank balances other than {iii) above 15(b) 1.0 426
{v) Loans 9 23 -
(vi) Other financial assets 10 82.43 26.55
(e) Current tax assets (net) 12(b) 89.98 3.80
(d) Other current assets 13 6,620.14 1,180.76
17,520.16 3,450.61
TOTAL ASSETS $6.676.79 15,600.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 3,701.00 2,601.00
(b) Other equity 17 (4,795.53) {5,366.55}
TOTAL EQUITY 1,094.55) 2,765.55)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 3208476 10,238.28
(ia) Lease liabifities 19 23.05 84,77
{b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 11 - -
(¢} Provisions 22 - -
(d) Other pon-current liabilities 23 - -
32,182.81 10,323.05
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 18 12,816.40 4,371.03
(ia) Lease liabilities 19 “ -
(ii) Trade payables 20
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 254,78 093
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8,466.35 1,624.02
(iiiy Other financial liabilities 21 3170457 1,380.91
(b} Other current liabilities 23 180.92 657.08
tc) Provisions 22 124.35 8.85
(d) Cusrent tax liabilities (net) 12(c) - -
15.588.53 8.042.81
TOTAL LIABILITIES 57,771.34 18,365.86
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 56,676.79 15.600.31
Materials Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of the even date attached

S K Naredi & Co.
1CAI Firm Registration No. 003333C
Chartered Accountant

s

(Rahul Naredi)
Partner
Membership No, 302632

Place: Jamshedpur
Dated; May 29, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Ramkrishna Casting Solutions Limited

( mar Khetan )

Director
DIN: 00533671

=

{ Rahu Kum

CFO and Director
DIN; 10300886

W=

(Mona Bahadur)

Company Secretary

M.No - AC§27452




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JIMT AUTO LIMITED)

9th Fleor, 23, Circus Avenue, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700017

CIN: U42274WB1997PLC277411

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March, 2025

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (i)

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade
[ncrease in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and scrap
Employee benefits expense
Power & Fuel
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses
Total Expenses (ii)
Profit/(Loss) befere Tax and exceptional items (i-ii)
Lxeeptional ltems }Income/(Expense)|
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (i-ii)
Tax expense
- Pertaining to Profit for the current year
- Tax adjustments for earlicr year
- Deferred tax charge/(credit) (refer note | 1)
Total tax expense (iti)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (iv) = (i - ii - iii)

Other Comprehensive Income

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
24 14,669.49 33598
25 1,449.68 541.28
16,119.17 877.26
26 8,123.01 12,62
204.12 -
27 (1,137.70) 136.36
28 1,156.18 294.24
810.335 194.69
29 [,436.21 437.29
6A 677.32 324.43
30 4,208.76 938.72
13,478.25 2,338.35
640.92 (1,461.09)
31 - 3,509.23
640,92 2,048.14
it
640.92 2,048.14

Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to Profit or Loss in subsequent year

i) Re-measurement Income on defined benefit plans

ii} [ncome tax effect on above

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year (net of tax) (v)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (iv+v)

Earnings per equity share -

{Face value X1/~ per share (refer note 16b))
1) Basic

2) Diluted

Material Accounting Policies

(69.91) -
(69.91) -
S71.01 2,048.14
32
0.19 3.57
0.19 3.57
2

The accompanying notes formt an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

S K Naredi & Co.
ICAI Firm Registration No, 003333C
Chartered Accountant

{3

{Rahul Naredi)
Partner
Membership No. 302632

Place: Jamshedpur
Dated: May 29, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Ramkrishna
Casting Solutions Limited

/ (RahuI,I?Wﬁ

( Lalit Kumar Khetan )
Director ('FO and Director
DIN: 00533671 DIN: 10300886

Wb b=

{Mona Bahadur)
Company Secretary
M.No - ACS27452



RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED {Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2025

(AH antounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Yenr ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
PROFIT BEFQRE TAXES G40 02 2048 14
Adjustments to reconcite profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amorizalon espenses 67732 12443
Balances wrilten back (net} - (3.509 23)
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Property. plant and equipment (nel) (1130 46) (140034
Interest income (3vud)y -
et foreign exchange differences {unrealised) (12238) -
Amortisaton of Government Granls o o
Finance Costs 143621 43729
Operating Profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities ] 1.572.53 (839.42)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase} / Decrease n Lrade recenables {2419.14) 2193
{Increase} / Decrease in i entories {6,268 02) (1,306 94)
{Increase) / Decrease in loans 23D o
{Increase) / Decrease in other financial assels (8133 178 G0
{Increase} / Decrease in other sssels {3,813.00) {1,420 25)
Increase/{Decrease) in prosvisions 4559 (403 06)
Increase/{ Decrease} i wrade payables 709618 1,772 57
Increase / (Decrease) in oiher financial habihnes 8220 {552 53)
Increase / (Decrease) 1 ether habihines {176 16) T4 54
Cash geaerated Mrgm opecalisns {6,263.46) {2472.16)
Direct Tax pard - 104
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (6,265.46} (2471.12}
B. NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase ol property. plant and equipment and mlang:ble assels {25.560 32) (3,305 22}
(ncluding camtal work-in-proeress. capilal credriors and capital adyances)
Proceeds (rom sale of propers, plant and equipment 1LET] &4 25330
Invesiment in Bank balance other than Cash & Cash Equnalents 20y
Investment in Security Deposit - (22797}
Invesunnet in Ghhars - (o Uy
Tnieresi Recened 3780 e
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {1} (23,691.28) 3.295.15)
<, CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds fron: Issue of Equity Share Capual 1. 100 () 2601 00
Increase in Reserve Pursuant 10 Merger as per NCLT Order - 6,596 30
Payment of lease latilities (224 58) (639
tntergst Paud {1.73971) (430 15}
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 27.542 30 19,238 2%
Repayment of Long Term Borrowmnys 14,938 49) -
Short Term Barzewigs (nel) 822 51 (13102 38)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C} 29.761.63 5.8389.66
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (195.11) 12339
Opening Cash and cash equivalents 198.64 75.25
Closine Cash and cash equivalents 553 198.64
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {193.14 113.3%
Notes: Asnat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
o) Cash and Cash Egquivalents inclnde:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis - 049

i) Cash i hand

i) Balances with banks
- On Current Accounis 553 19815
- O Share Warrant Accounl - o
- Fived deposits with eriginal matunity ol less than 3 months

Cash and Cash Eguivalenis 553 (98,64

Materinl Accounting Policies Note 2

The accompanying notes form an integral pact of these financial statements

As per our repert ef even date atiached
For amd on behadf of the Board of Divecters of Ramkrishona Casting

Far S K Naredi & Co. Selutions Limited
1CALirm Registranon No 003333
Chartered Accounlants

Wt s

{Rahul Naredi) { Lalit Kumar Khefan )

Partner = A Dureclor g
Membership No 302632 I ICAI \& DIN: 00533671 DIN 10300386
[+ Reg
S8 ;
s Ny f et
{Mona Bahaduar)
Place- Jamghedpur Company Secretan

Date - May 29, 2025 M No - ACS27452




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTC LIMITED)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Afl amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
A Equity Share Capital (refer note 16)

Particulars Balance as at | Issued during | Adjustment for | Balance as at
Agpril 1, 2024 the year | Sub-Division of | March 31, 2025
Equity Shares
Equity Share of # /- (March 31, 2024: ¥ 1/-) each issued, subscribed and fully paid 2,601.00 1, 100,00 - 3,701.00
Equity Share in numbers 26,01,00,000 | 11,00,00,000 - 37.01.00,000
Particulars Balance as at | Issued during| Extinguished Balance as at
Aprit 1,2023 the year | during the year| March 31, 2024
pursuant to
NCLT order
Equity Share of ¥ ¥/~ (March 31, 2023; 1/} each issucd, subscribed and fully paid 5,038.32 2,601,00 (5,038.32) 2,601.00
Equity Share in numbers 50,38,32,140 | 26,01,00,600 | {5(.38,32,140) 26,01,00,000
B Other Equity (refer note 17)
Particulars Reserve and Surplus Total
Capital Securities General  |Reclassification of Capital Muoney Retained
Reserve Premium reserve acturial redemplion received earnings
gain/Loss,on reserve against Share
account of defined Warrants
Employee Benefit
Obligation
Balance as at April 1, 2024 12,160.11 599.41 1,080,83 (111,14) - - {19,095.77) {5,366,55)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 571.01 571.00
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
- Re-measurement Income on defined benefit plans - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 57101 571.00
Reduction of share capital - - - - - - - -
Dividend on equity shares - - E - - - - B
- - - - - - 571.01 571.00
Balance As at March 31, 2025 12,160,11 §99.41 1,080.83 (111,14} = - (18,524.76) (4,795.55)
Balance as at April I, 2023 525,50 59941 1,080.83 (111,14) - - {21,143,91) (19,049.30)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 2,048.14 204814
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
- Re-measurement Income on defined benefit plans - - - - - - - -
‘Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 2,048.14 2,048.14
Extinguishment of shares 5,038,32 - - - - - - 5,038.32
Transfer from Retnined eamings to General reserve - - - - - - - -
Reserve created on account of Merger 6,596.29 - - - - - - 6,596 29
Money received against Share Warrants (Refer note 17(1)) - - - - - - - -
Davidend on equity shares (refer nate 45) - - - - - - - -
11,634.61 - - - - - 2,048.14 13,682.75
Balance as at March 31, 2024 12,160.11 599.41 1,080.83 {111.14) - - {19,095,77) {5,366,55)
Material Accounting Pelicies Note 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
S K Naredi & Co.
HCAT Frme Regastration No 6033330 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountant Rambkrishna Casting Solutiens Limited

o TN WV

{Rahul Narediy ~. { Lalit Kumar Khetan }
Pariner {l. -/ i NN Director
Membership No. 302632 | CAl DIN: 005335671 DIN: 103008806

|| *( Reg No |

2=

(Mons Bahadur}
Place Jamshedpur Company Secretary
Dated May 29,2025 M No - ACS274452



RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTQ LIMITED}
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Company Overview

Ramkrishna Casting Solutions Limited (formerly known as JMT Auto Limited) incorperated as Public Limited Company is into the business of manufacturing of Auto Components. The core
compentancy of the Company is into manufacturing of Gear and Transmission parts. The Manufacturing facilities are located in Jamshedpur, Jharkhand and Dharwad, Karnataka, The shares
of the Company had been delisted on Natienal Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange w.e.f. December 18' 2023,

The Company has its Registered Office at Sth Floor, 23, Circus Avenue, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700017

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue with the resolution of the Board of Directors on May 29, 2025,
This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Audited Financial Statement. These policies have been consistently appled 1o all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and Material Accounting Policies

2.1

22

Basis of Preparation of financial statements and compliance with Indian Accounting Standards “Ind-AS"

These financial statements comply in all material respects with the [ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notitied under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’},
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act. These standards and policies have been consistently
applied to ali the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost conventien and on accrual method of accounting, except for certamn financial assets’
liabiliues measured at fair value as described in accounting policies regarding financial instruments, The financial statements are presented in INR which 1s the Company's
functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 1,00,000), except when otherwise indicated

Current v/s Non Current Classification
The Company presents asscis and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification,

An asset is classificd as current when it is:

a. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢ Expeeted 1o be reatised within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

d. Cash or cash equivalents untess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for af least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are ¢lassified as non-current.
A hability is classitied as current when:

a Itis expected to be settled i the normal operatmg cycle,

b. it 1s beld premarily for the purpose of trading,

¢ 1t1s due 10 be senled within twelve months afier the reporting peried, or

d. There ts no unconditional right to defer seittement of the liability beyond at least twelve months afler the teporiing period

Adl ather liabilities are clagsified as non-current
Deferred tax assets and labilities ave classificd as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve nonths as its
operating cycle
Historical cosi convention
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except the following, which are measured at fair values:-
1} eertain financial assets and liabilities
ii) Plan assets of detined benefit employee benefit plans

Summary of Materizl Accounting Policics

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

TFangible Assets and Depreciation

Tangible Assets are stated either at deemed cost as considered on the date of transition to Ind AS ot at cost of acquisition / construction together with any incidental expenses
related to acquosition and appropriate borrowing costs, less acoumnlated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, ifany. An impairment Joss is recognized where applicable,
when the carrying value of tangible assets of cash generating unit exceed its fair value or value in use, whiclhever is higher

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recogmsed as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 1113 probable that future cconenue benetits associated
with the item will flow to the Comipany and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The careymg amountt of the replaced component is derecognised when replaced All othey
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss durning the reporting period in which they are incurred, if any

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, ifany

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1s provided under the straight-lne method over the useful lives of assets us presenbed i Parl C of Schedule £ to the Companes Act

2013 except lor the followiny assets where the useful hfe considered 15 different than that prescrbed in Sehedule 11 on the basis of masagement's echineal evaluation e
management beligves that the useful lives as given below tepresents the period over which management expects 10 use these assets,

Tvpe of asset Useful lives estimated by the management (vears)
a) l.and-leaselold Based on rematnmg lease term

k) Buwilding* 30

c) Plam and Equipment * 10 1o 40

d) Furmture's & Fixtures 10

) Vehicles 8

3] Office Equipment 5

) Bata Processing Umits 3

hy Intangible Assets o

*Use e of the Plant & Equipment and building has been changed i order to comply with the Ramkrishna Forgings Lumiied’s (Holdimg Company) accounting policies

he Company reviews the estinated residual values and expected useful lives of assets at least annualty. In particular, the Company considers the impact of health, safetv and
chvironmental legislation m its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual vajues ;i

An item of property, plant and equipment and any sign:ficant part aitially recognised i dgydedpmiadd };\bq disposal or when no future econonuc benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Deprecianion for assets purchased / sold during the year 18 proportionatgly glrted  Anywip “E\\.'um ansimg on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel) is included s the ey HI-'I1L'|\|15.'.|,11'\.\'1_||en the assel is derecogmsed

The residual values, useful fves and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cauipmenyarcioey ievjedt i each financial year end and adjusted prospecuively, if appropriate




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Motes to the financial statetrents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

b) Intangible assets
lintangible assets have a finite useful life and are stated at cost less accumutated amortisation, impairment loss, if any.

Computer Software for internal use, which is primarily acquired from third party vendors, is capitalised. Subsequent costs associated with maintaining such sofiware are
recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of software includes license fees and cost of implementation / system integration services, where applicable.

Gains or losses ariging from derccognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Type of asset Useful lives estimated by the managenment (years)

Intangible assels - Computer software 5

¢) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there 15 an indication that an asset may be impaired. [f any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating wnit’s (CGU) fair value less cosis
of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an mdividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 10 its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market teansactions are taken into account, if available I1fno such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating unmits to
which the individual assets are allocated. Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss For
assels, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased If
such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed 11s recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no itpairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years

Such reversal 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired Afier impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

The Coempany assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission-reduction legislation that may increase manufacturing costs These
risks 1 refation to climate-related matiers are included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable amount These assumptions have been
included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts,

d) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers 15 recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred (o the customer at an amount that zefleets the consideration to which the
Lompany expects to be ennitled in exchange for those goods or services Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price
inet of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation The transaction price of goods sold or services rendered is net of variable consideration on account af
returns, discounts, volume rebates, goods and service tax excluding ameunt collected on behalf of third parties. The Company has concluded that it 15 the prineipal i all of ats
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor as it lias pricing latitude and is also exposed fo inventory and credit risks.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be rehably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company regardless of when
the payment is being made and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as described below.

Sale of Products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers the conirol of goods to the customer as per the terms of contract and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and recovery of cansideration is probable, The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations 10
which a portion of the transaction price needs 10 be allocated. 1n determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of
significant financing component, non-cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any),

Intercst Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash paymems or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or 1o the
amortised cost of a financial liability. Interest mcome is included m finance income in the statement of profit and loss,

Foreign exchange difference on operating assets and liabilities
Exchange differences arising on operating items (such as trade payables, trade reccivables, forward contracts on receivables) including realssed exchange difference are classified
as ofher operating income

Contract balanees

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that 1s uncondilional i.¢, only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration i
due However, frade recetvables do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at transacticn price.

Contract liabilities

A conract nbility 15 the obligation to transfer goods or seivices 1o a customer for which the Company has received constderation or an amount of considerationt 15 due troni the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract lability 15 recogmsed when the payment 1s made or the
payment 15 due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recogrused as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

¢} Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Costs incurred in bringing each product 1o its present location and

condztions are accounted tor as follows

(i) Raw materials, Stores and Spares: These are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Hawever, material and other tems held for use in production of mventories are
not written down below cost if the finished products n wiich they will be incorporated are expected 10 be sold at or above cost. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
meurred m brmgng the mventories 1o their present location and condition. Cost 15 determined on weighted average method

(ii) Finished goods and work in progress: These are valued at lower of cost and net reahisable value. Cost ncludés cosb-of direet. fatetals and labour and a proportion of

mznutacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on weighted average methed ]

{ili) Scrap: Scrap 1s valued at Net Realisable Value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estmated costs necessary 1o Take Ihe sale



RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

1) Leases
The Company assesses at contract mcephon whether a confract 1s, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an 1denufied
asset for a period of ttme 1 exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

Right-of-Use (ROU) assets are recognised at inception of a contract or arrangement for significant lease components at cost Jess lease incentives, if any. ROU assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
cost incurred and lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date. ROU assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful
lives of the underlying assets on a straight line basis. Lease term is determined based on consideration of facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive fo exercise an
extension option, or not 10 exercise & termination option. Lease payments associated with short-term leases and low value leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on
a straight line basis over the term of he relevant lease.

The Company recognises lease lisbilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made on the date of recognition of the lease. Such lease liabilities do not include
variable lease payments (that do not depend on an index or a rate), which are recognised as expense in the periods in which they are incurred. Interest on lease liability is
recognised using the effective interest method. Lease liabilitics are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The carrying,
amount of lease liabilities is also remeasured upon modification of lease arrangement or upen change in the assessment of the lease term, The effect of such remezsurements is
adjusted to the value of the ROU assets.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in whtch the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor
under an operating lease, the asset 15 capitalised within propesty, plant and equipment ot investment property and depreciated over its useful economic life Payments received
under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the tzrm of the lease.

2) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives riss fo a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when 1t becomes party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument. Financial assets and financial Labilities are
initially measured at fair value other than Trade Receivables which are measured at Transaction Price (other than trade receivables containing significant financing component).
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than finaneial assets and financial labilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted fram the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate. For financial assets and financial linbilities at far
value through profit or loss, directly attribitable transaction costs are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria
i The Company’s business model for managng the financial asset and

ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following catepories:
1 Financial assets measured at amortized cost

i1. Financial assets meastred at fair value through oiher comprekensive income (FYTOCH

1. Financeal assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

I Financil assets measured at amortized cost:

A fenancial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the firanciat asset is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates the night to receive cash flows that are solely payments of principal and nterest on the principal amount
outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the Company (Refer Note 38 for further details). Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method Under the effective interest method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the intial
recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amertization usimg the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the
maturity amount is added 1o the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial asset over the relevant period of the financial asset 1o arsive at the
amortized cost at each reporting date The corresponding efTect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as interest income over the relevans period of the
financiat asset. The same 15 mcluded under ather income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amortized cost of'a financial asset is alse adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

ii. Financial assets measured af FVTOCH:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met

a)  The Company’s business madel objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

by The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates the right to receive cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OC is not reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the
Company may transfer such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity

iii.  Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset 1s measured at FYTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FEVTOCI as explained above

[his 1s a residual category applied to all other investiments of the Company excluding investments in subsidiary companies (Refer Note 38 for further detarls) Such firancial assels
are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date Fair value changes are recogmzed in the Statement of Profit ard Loss

Le-recognition:

A financial asset or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of ssmilar finaneial assels is derecogmized 1 ¢ remeved from the Company s Batance Sheet when
any of the followmg oceurs

1 The contractuai nights to cash flows from the financial asset expires.,

1 The Company Iransfers is contractual niglits to recewve cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset,

in The Company refamns the contractual rights to receirve cash flows but assumes a contragtiabablgitonio-pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipienis
under a “pass-through” arrangement (thereby substantially (ransferring all the risks and rewards-of ownership.afthe financial asset);

AW




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerty known as JMT AUTO LIMITED}
Notes to the fingncial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

iv. The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the financial asset.

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company
continues to recognize such financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the Company afso recognizes an associated liability. The
financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On Derecognition of a financial asset [except as mentioned in (1) above for financial assets measured at FYTQOCI] difference between the carrying amount and the consideration
received is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 38 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant
merease in credit sk

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IndAS 109, 'Financial Instruments', which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recagnition and measurement;

Financal labilities are 1nitially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are disectly attributable 10 the acquisition or 1ssue of finaneial habilines (other than financial habibues
at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of the financial liabilities, as appropriate. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributabte transaction costs are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Subsequent measitrement:
All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequenily measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method (Refer Note 38 for further details).

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments are exactly discounted to the initial recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the maturity amount is added to the initial recognition value (net of principal
repayments, if any} of the financial labitity over the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The corresponding effect of the
amortization under effective interest method is recognized as interest expense over the relevant peried of the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original lability and the recognitien of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financiat liability derecognized and the consideration paid is recopnized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i} Fair Yalue Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
assct or paid 1o transfer a liabihty m an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 15 based on the presumption that the
transaction 1o sgll the asset or transfer the bability takes place either

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabitity.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or diselosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categonzes into three levels.
described as follows, the inpuls to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority o queted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics
Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable far the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities thal are recognized in the financiat statements ai fair value on a recureing basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
i the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of eack reporting period and discloses the same.

oo



RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

i) Income Taxes
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current Income tax:

Tax expense comprises curtent and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation autherities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised oulside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive inceme or in eguity) Current 1ax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect o
situations in which apphicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tux:

The company had not made deferred tax provision due to future virtual uncertainty.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recogmized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred 1ax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a lepally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the defeired tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the Company.

k) Provisions and Contingencies
The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
ceonomic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax ratc that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying
cconomic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

1} Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpese of Cash Flow Stalement compnise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances and demand depostts with banks where the original
matuzity is three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and wineh are subject Lo an insignificant risk of changes in value

m) Employce Bencfits

Short Term Emplovee Benefits:
All employee benefils payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and they are recegnized as an expense at the
undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the year in which related service is rendered.

Post-Employment Bengfils:

1. Defined Cornribution plans (Provident Fund):

Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses for the peried in which the employee has rendered the
service

11, Defined Benefit plans (Gratuity Fund):

a. The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 at the year end

b. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on Goveinment bonds that have ferms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

¢. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
Employees Benefits Expense in the statement of profit and loss.

d. Re-measurement gains and losses arising fiom experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they ocour, directly in Uther
Comprehensive Income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity

e. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the profit or loss as past service

Other employee benefit obligations (Compensated Absences):

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are expected to be settled whotly within 12 months after the end of the period n which the employees render the relaled service They
are measured annually by actuarics as the present value of expected future payments to be made 1n respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reportmg period
usmg the projected unit credit method as per [nd AS 19 The benefits are discounted using the market yields on Government bends at the end of the reporting penod that bave
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation Remeasurements as a result of expetience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized  the
statement of profit and loss Enbitlements fo annual leave {earned leave) are recognized when they accrug 1o employees. They can either be availed or encashed subject 10 a
restriction on the maximum number of accumulation of leave.

n) Borrowing Cost
Borrowing €ost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs mcurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings te the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction er production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the pericd of ume that 15
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial peniod of time to gek ready for their mtended
use or sale

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred

e



RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

0) Events after Reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the
financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

p) Earnings Fer Share

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders are divided with the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.1 Key Accounting Estimates & Judgements
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

a.  Income taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for items allowable on payment basis in income tax computation / unused fax tosses / MAT carry forward to the extent is probable that taxable
profit will be available aganst which the losses can be utilised. Sigmficant management judgement is required lo determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recogmised, based upon the likely tmuing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies including amount expected to be paid / recovered for
uncertam 1ax positions (Refer Note 1)

b.  Property, Plant and Equipment and Useful Life of PPE and Intangible Assets

Management reviews its estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of (he assets. Uncertainties in these eslimales
retate to technical and economic obsolescence dhat may change the utility of property, plant and equipment.

C. Defined Benefit Plans

Post-employment benefils represents obligation that will be seitled in future and require assumptions to project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefits accounting 1
intended 1o reflect the recognition of future benefits cost over the employee's approximate service period, based on the terms of plans and the investment and funding decisions
made The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate, rate of compensation increase and future mortality rates. Changes m
these key assumptions can have a significant impact on the defined benefit obligations, funding requirements and benefit costs incurred.

d.  Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow madel, which invelve various judgements and assumptions.

e.  Provisions and Contingencies
Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matiers, it is often difficult to predict the final outcomes

The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainiies and complexities, including but not
limeted to the facts and circumstances of each particular case ard claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law, in the normal course of busmess. The Company
consults with legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company acerues a liability when it is determined that an adverse outcome 1s probable
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matter is disclosed.

3.2 Standard issued but not cffective
There are no standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements.

3.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

i. Amendments in Ind AS
The Mimstry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the foltowing Ind AS which

are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments

(i} Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs fo develop accounting estimates. The amendments had ne impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to [nd AS |

The amendments aim to help entitics provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their “significant” accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102,
Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34
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RAMEKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly knowr as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial staitements as at and for the Year Ended March 35,2025

4. Property, plaot and equipment

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Freehold Land  Factory Shed Plant and Furniture and Velicles Office Computer Air Total
(Including cost of and Building machinery fixtures equipment Conditioning
Development) Machines
Cost
As at April 1, 2023 265,70 5,377.38 34,355.16 237.26 161,47 196.98 303.43 54.70 44,E52.09
Additions 1.70 - . - - - = = 1.70
Disposals/ deductions 13.28 8492 665,28 - 154.86 105.90 300.01 - 1,324.26
As at March 31, 2024 25412 5492.46 33,639,883 237.26 6.61 91.08 342 54.70 39,829.53
Additions - - 17.524.91 93.00 25.67 13.82 122.52 81.75 17.861.66
Disposals/ deductions 218,04 152.2% 3,399.23 15.10 6.61 2.02 - 1.93 3.794.18
As at March 31, 2025 36.08 5.340.21 47,815.56 315.16 25.67 102.88 125.94 135.51 53.897.01 |
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 - 2,902.72 29,582.04 238,45 137.26 185.82 30343 52.92 33,392.64
Charge for the year (Refer Note b{A)) - 68.97 242,04 0.99 6.54 1.60 - - 329,09
| Disposals/ deductions - 3417 617,53 - 137.71 101,29 300.01 - 1,210.70
As at Mareh 31, 2024 - 2,917.55 19,206.55 228,39 6.09 86.12 342 52.92 32,502.03
Charge for the year {Refer Note 6(A)} 76.97 £27.41 3.0 179 1,36 22.84 1.43 634.88
Disposaly deductions 67,23 3,032.23 14.28 6,10 1.92 0.89 3,122.64
As at March 31, 2025 - 2.927.29 26,701.73 218,20 1.78 85.55 26.26 5347 30,014,27
Net Block
As at Mareh 31, 2024 254.12 2,574.91 4,483,133 7.87 0,52 4.96 - 1,77 7,327.50
As at Maveh 31,2025 3608 2412.92 21,113.83 26,96 23.39 17.33 99.68 82,04 13,882,714
4 (2} Capital work-in-progress
Particulars Capital worle- Total
in-progress
Cost
As ar April 1, 2023 - -
Additions 3,528.40 3,52840
Capitalised to Property, plant and equipment - -
As at March 31, 2024 3,528.4¢ 3,528.46
Additions 28,735.03 2R,735.0%
Capitalised to Property, plant and equipment 17,861 .06 17.801.66
As at March 31, 2023 14,401.82 14.401.32
As at March 31, 2024 3,528.46 3.528.46
As at March 31, 2025 14.401.82 14,401.82
Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule — .
Amaount in CWIP as on March 31, 2025
Particulars Less than [ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 14,401.82 - - - 14,401.82
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Totat 14,401.82 - - - 14,401.82
Cupital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
Amount in CWIP as on_March 31, 2024
Particulars Less thaa § 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Toial
year years
Projects in progress 3.528.46 - - - 3,828,406
Projects tempaorarily suspended & i = = -
| Total 3,528.46 - + - A,528.40




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

5. Intangible assets

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Computer Software

Cost

As at April 1, 2023
Additions

Disposals/ deductions

176.09

176.09

As at March 31, 2024

Additions
Disposals/ deductions

As at March 31, 2025

Amortization

As at April 1, 2023

Charge for the year (Refer Note 6{A))
Disposals/ deductions

176.09

176.09

As at March 31, 2024

Charge for the year (Refer Note 6(A))
Disposals/ deductions

As at March 31, 2025

Net Block

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2025

6. Right-of-use assets

Particuilars

Lease hold Land

Total

Cost

As at April 1, 2023
Additions

Disposals/ deductions

84.02

84.02

As at March 31, 2024

84.02

§4.02

Additions
Disposals/ Modification

494.41

464 41

As at March 31, 2025

578.43

578.43

Depreciation

As at April 1, 2023

Charge for the vear (Refer Note 6(A))
Disposals/ Modification

434

4.34

As at March 31, 2024

4.34

4.34

Charge for the vear (Refer Note 6(A))
Diisposalss Modification

42.43

42,43

As at March 31, 2025

46.77

46.77

Net Block

As at March 31, 2024

79.68

79.68

As at March 31, 2025

531.66

§31.66

6 (A) Depreciation and amortization expenses

Particalars For the Year For the Year ended

ended March 31, March 31, 2024

2025
P

Depreciation of Property, plant and cquipment AN 634,88 320,09

Amortization of Intangible assets *- d?c'.\ - -
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets cf 42,43 4.34
Total J&) 677.32 324.43

N/
/Q’FDA,V/




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly knawn as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements 2s at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7. (a) Investments (Non-current) Face Value Number of shares Amount
i. Investments (other Body Corporate) per share March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

At fair value through other comprehensive income
Unguoted equity instruments (fully paid)
Investment in Other (Non -Trade)

Adityapur Auto Cluster Z1,000 600 600 6.00 600
6,00 6.00
Agaregate value of unquoted investments 6.00 6.00

Additional Information:

a) These investments in equity instruments are not held for trading. Upon the application of Ind AS 109, the Company has chosen to designate these investments in equity
nstruments as at FVTOCI as the management believes that this provides a more meaningful presentation for lang term investments, then reflecting changes in fair values
immediately in statement of profit and loss. Based on the aforesaid election, fair value changes are accumulated within Equity under "Fair Vatue changes through Other
Comprehensive Income - Equity Instruments” The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when relevant equity shares are derecognized.




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT ALTO LIMITED)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

8. Trade receivables
At amortised cost

Unsecured
Considered good

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Less: Impainment allowance (Allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Trade receivables Ageing Sehedule

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless ofherwise stated)

Current

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,
2024

2,560.47

141.33

2,560.47

i41.33

Particulars

Qutstanding as on Murch 31, 2025

Not Due

Upfe 6
months

6 months -
1L year

1-2
years

2-3

years

More than
3 years

Total

Undisputed

Considered good

2.479.63

76,70

414

2,560.47

Which have significant increase in credit risk

Credit impaired

Disputed

Considered good

Which have significant increase in credil risk

Credit impaired

Sub-Total

2.479.63

76.70

2.560.47

[.ess: Loss allowance

Total

2,479.63

76,70

2,560.47

Particulars

Outstanding as on March 31, 2024

Not Due

Upto 6
months

6 months -
1 year

1-2

2.3

years YCars

More than
3 years

Total

Undisputed

Considered good

41.94

69.99

23.39

141.33

Which have signtficant increase in credit risk

Credit impaired

Disputed

Considered good

Which have significant increase in credit rigk

Credit inpaired

Sub-Total

41.94

69.99

6.01

23.39

141,33

Less: Loss allowance

Total

41.94

69.9%

6.01

23,39

14§.33

8.1: rade receivables are nen-interest bearing and are generally received within 45 to 40 days.
8.2: The camying amount of trade reccivables may be affected by the changes in the credi risk of the counterparties as well as the currency risk as explained in Refer note 19A.

8.3: No trade o other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are duc
from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partuer, a director or a member,

8.4: Includes receivable from holding company March 31. 2025 - ¥ 87932 Lakhs {March 31, 2024 - T 87,38 lakhs) {Refer note 37)

9. Loans
At amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Employees

§0. Other Financial Assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

At amortised cost
Accrued Dnterest
Securty deposits
Loan to related parics
Others

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,
2024
- - 2.31 -
- - 2.31 -
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31,
2024
- 775 2617
32061 314.5¢ -
- - 74.68 .38
320061 314.59 82.43 26.55




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)

Notes to the linancial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

11, Taxes

i} Deferred Tax

Deferred Tayx Liabilities

Preperty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
Gross Deferved Tax Liabilities

Deferred Tax Assets

Items allowable for tax purpose on paymentsfadjustment
MAT entitlement receivable

On Qihers

Gross Deferred Tax Assets

Deferved Tax Liabilitics (Net)

The: Company had brought forward accumulated loss and business loss prior to crder of Hon
done internal assessment and 15 1n the view of non recognizing the deferred tax assels on the

12. Tax assets and liabilities

0} Non-curreut tax assets (net)
Non-current tax assets

b) Curcent wx assets (net}
Income Tax Refundable

¢) Current tax labilities (net)

13, Other assety
(Unsecured, considered good)

&) Capital advances
b} Advance other than capital advances
- Advance {o suppliers
~ Advance to Employees
¢} Others
- Prepaid expenses
- Balance with Government Authorties *

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Non-curyent
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,
2024

'ble NCLT order New Delhi, Bench order and during the year the company had
sameg

Non-curyent Current
As at Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025 Mareh 31,
2024
- - 89 98 380
- - 89.98 3.80
Non-currend Current
Asat As al Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31,
2024
893 47 133123 -
- - 96 67 -
. - 609 E
1380 - 3752 2419
s - 5,148 63 1,086 57
13.80 893,47 6,G20,14 1,180,76

* Batances with Governnient Authonties pnimanily includes amounts of unutihized goods and service tax input credits on purchases
year or regularly utilised to offset the goods and service tax liability on goods sold by the Company

‘These are generally realised within onte




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

14, Inventories

{Valucd at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw Mafterials

‘Work in Progress

Finished Goods

Stores & Spares (including packing materials)
Forgings Scrap

Total

15, a) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,952.50 1,054.05
1,829.20 30.88
283.98 %.59
3,541.04 743,82
551.57 1.93
8,158.29 1,890.27
e
As at Asat

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

i} Cash in hand - 0.49
ii) Balances with banks
- On Current Accounts 5.53 108.15
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.53 198.64
15. b) Other Bank Balances:
- Earmarked balances - 9.26
- Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months** 1.01 -
Other Bank Balances 1.01 9.26
Cash and Bank balances (a +h) 6.54 207.90
15. ¢) Changes in linbilitics arising from finzncing activities
Particulars April 1, 2024 | Cash Flows |Qn account of] Qthers March 31, 2025
{Net) Ind AS 116
Current borrowings (excluding current maturities of long term borrowings (secured)) 2,996.03 8,022.11 - - 11,018.14
WNon current borrowings (including current maturities of long tenn borrowengs (secured))
11,613.28 22,603.81 (311.70) (12.38) 33,893.02
Lease Fiabilities {refer note 33) 34.77 9.99 (6.71) - 88.05
‘Total liabilities from financing activities 14,694.08 30,635.91 (318.41) {12.39) 44,999.21
Particulars April 1, 2023 | Cash Flows |On account of| QOthers March 31, 2024
(Net) Ind AS 116
Current borrowings {excluding current maturities of long tenu borrowings (secured)) £7,480.41 (14,484.39) - - 2,996,02
Non current borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings (secured)) - 11,613.28 - - 11,613.28
Lease liabilitics (refer note 33) - - 84.77 - £84.77
Total liabilities from financing activities 17.480.41 (2,871.11) 84.77 - 14.694,07




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

16. Equity share capital

Anuthorised capital
Equity shares of T 1/- each (March 31, 2024 T 1/- cach)

a) Reconciliation of equity shares {anthorised) outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Shares with voting rights

At the beginning of the year
Increased Pursuant to NCLT order
[ssue of Equity Shares

At the end of the year

(All amgunis in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Number of shares
As at As at Asat As at

Mar 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
63,56,00,000 63,56,00,000 6,350.00 635000
63.50.00.000 63,50,00,000 6,350,080 6,350.00

Number of shares
For Year ended For the year
March 31 2025 ended March 31,

For Year ¢nded  For thie year ended

March 31 2025 _ March 31, 2024

63,50,00,000 52,30,00,000 635000 5,250 00
= 11,00.00,000 - 1.100 00
63,50.00,000 63,50,00,000 6,350,00 6,350.00

Numhber of shares
For Year ended For the year For Year ended For the year ended
March 31 2025 ended March 31, Mareh 31 2025 March 31, 2024

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equely shares of ¥ 1/- each (March 3, 2024 ¥ 1/- eacl)

b} Reconcilintion of equily shares outstanding nt the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity Shares with voting rights

At the beginming of the year
Shares Cancelled Pursuant to NCLT Order

Issue of Shares
At the end of the year

Lquity Share of 7 1/~ (March 31, 2024 : T 1-) ench issued, subscriled and fully paid

Shareholders kolding more than 5% equity shares for the FY 2024-2025 in the Company is given as helow.:

37,01,00,000

26,01,00,000

3,701 00

2,601 00

37,01,00,000

26.01,00,000

3,701.00

2,601,00

Number of shares

For the year

ended March 31,

For the year

ended March 31,

For the year

ended March 31,

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

2025 2024 2025
26,01,00,008 50,38,32,140 2,601 00 5,038 32
- {50,38,32,140) - (5,038 32)
11,00,00,000 26,01,00,000 L100.00 2,601 00
37,01,00,000 26,01,00,000 3,701.00 2,691.00

No, of Share at

Change during

No, of Share at

% of Total Shares

Name the beginning of the year the end of the
the year year
Ramknshna Forgings Lamited 26,00,59 940 11,00.00.000 37.00.95,940 100 00°%%

Shurehclders holding more than 5% canity shares for the FY 2023-2024 in the Company is given as below :

No. of Share at

Change during

No. of Share at

% of Total Shares

Name the beginning of the year the end of the
the vear year
Ramknishna Forgngs Limited - 26,00,99,940 26.00.99.910 100 00°a
Shares held by holding company at the end for the vear 2024-2025
No. of Shareat  Change during No. of Share at % of Total Shares
Narmie the heginning of the yenr the end of (ke
the vear year
Ramknshna Forgings Limited 26,00,99,940 11,60,00,000 37,00,99.940 100 00%

Shares hetd by holding company at the end for the year 2023-2024

No. of Share at

Change during

Nao. of Share at

% of Total Shares

Name the beginning of the year the end of the
the vear vear
Ramkrishna Forgings Limuted - 26.00.99.940 26,00,99.940 100 00%




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly knovwn as JMT AUTQ LIMITED)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
(Al aounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Shares held by promoters at the end for the year 2024-2025

No.of Shareat Change during ~ No, of Share at % of Total % change during
Name the beginnlag the year the end of the year Shares the year
of the year
Rambkrishna Forgings Limited 26,00,99,940 1£,00,00,000 37,00,95,940 100% 42.29%
Shares held by promoters at the end for the year 2023-2024 :
No. of Shareat Change during  No. of Share at % of Total % change during
Name the beginning the year the end of the year Shares the year
of the year
RamXrishna Forgings Limnited - 26,00,99,940 26,00,99,540 100% -

Terms/right attached to equity share
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 1/- per share (Masch 31, 2024: ¥ 1/- each). Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vote per share. The company declares and

pays dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend propased by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval ¢f the shareholders in the ensuing Anaval General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distnbution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares hetd by the shareholders.

As per (he Resolution Plan approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, New Dethi Bench, vide its Order dated 21st August, 2023 for the Corporate Insolvency of the Company, upon
issuance of new equity shares to RKFL Engineering Industry Private Limited, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the company retating to securityholders as on 21st August, 2023,
extinguished i.e. the shares of shareholders holding 50,38,32,140 equity shaves were yeduced and the amount of the reduetion in the equity share capital has been transferred to Capital Reserve.

Further, as an integral part of the plan, RKFL Engineering Industry Private Limited, was merged with the company w.e.f. November 8, 2023, and the issued, subseribed and paid up share capital of the
company was transferred tc Ramkrishna Forgings Limited,




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED
Notces to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17. Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Capital reserves (Refer note a) 12,160.11 12,160.11
Securities Premium Account (Refer note b) 599.41 599.41
General reserve (Refer note ¢) 1,080.83 1,080.83
Retained eamings (Refer note d) {18,524.76) (19,095.77)
Reclassification of acturial gain/Loss,on account of defined Emplovee Benefit Obligation (Refer note €) (111.14) (111.14)
Total (4,795.55) (5,366.55)

a) Capital Reserve

This reserve had been created on account of capital subsidy received in the form of sales 1ax refund under fharkhand Industrial Pelicy, 2001 and o account of adjustment pursuant

to NCLT order.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 12,160.11 525.50
Add: Extinguishment of Share Capital - 5,038.32
Add: Resernve on account of Merger - 6,596.29
Closing Balance 12,160.11 12,160.11
b) Securities Premium Account
Seccurities Premium Account is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The same is ulilised in accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act, 2013,
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 599.41 599.41
599.41 599.41

Closing Balance

¢) General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations.
Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn though
the C'ompany may transfer such percentage of its profits for the financial year as it may consider appropriate, Declaration of dividend out of such reserve shall not be made except

in accordance with rules preseribed in this behalf under the Act.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 1,080.83 1,080.83
Add: Amount transferred from Retained carnings - -
1,080.83 1,080.83

Closing Balance

d) Retained earnings

Retained Earnings arc the profits and gains that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year (19,095.77) (21,143.91)
Add: Profit tor the year before OCI 640.92 2,048,14
Add: Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (net of tax) (69.91) -
(i8,524.76) {19,095.77)
Less: Transfer to General Reserve - -
(18,524.76) (19,093.77)
¢) Reclassification of acturial gain/Loss,on account of defined Employee Benefit Obligation
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening baance (111.14) (111.14)
Add: Acturial gainfoss during the year - -
Closing Balance {111.14) (111.14)




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

18, Borrowings
At amortised cost

Secured
Term Loans From banks
- Rupee loans
- Foreigm Currency Loan
Term Leans From financiat institations
- Non-Convertible Debentures
Total

Less; Current maturities of long-term bomowings ($ecured)
Taotal

Waorking Capital facilities:
Secured

Repayable on denand ;
From banks

- Cash Credit

Unsecured

From Holding Company
- Short Term Loans

Current maturities of long-tenn botrowings (Secured)

{All amounis in INR Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

Non-current
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

30,781.52 6,113.28
1,399.84 -
171166 5,500.00

33,893.02 11.613.28
1,798.26 1,375.00

32.094,76 10,238.28

Current
As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

3,329.85 -
591291 2,258.96
1,775.38 7371.07
1,798.26 1,375.00

12,8164 4371

18.1 The Company has taken borrowings in domestic currency towards funding of its capital expenditure, working capital requirements, long tern working capital and general corporate purpose. The
berrowings comprise funding arrangements with various banks and financial institutions. The Company’s total borrowings and a summary of security provided by the Company are as follows -

Particutars Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Secured long tenn borrowings 33,893.02 11,613.28
Secured short tenn borrowings 3.329.85 -
Unsecured short term bomrowings 7.688.29 2,996.03
Total borrowings 44.911.16 14.609.31
Asat As at
Facility Category Security Details Payment frequeney March 31, 2625 [March 31, 2024
Primary:
First Pari Passu charge on the entire Fixed Assets of the Company
Repayable as below:
Collateral: 7 quarterly instalments in FY 2025-26
Second Pari Passu charge on the entire Current assets of the Company 30 quarterly instalments in FY 2026-27
Rupee Loans* 42 quarterly instalments in FY 2027.28 31,093.22 6,113.28
Corporate Guarantee: 38 quarterly instalments in FY 2028-29
Unconditional & Irrevecable Corporate Guarantee of Ramkaishna Forgings Limited | 30 quarterly instalments in FY 2029-30
34 quarterly instalments in FY 2030-31
22 quarterly instzlments i FY 2031-32
Foraign currancy loans * (includes repayment of twelve loans)
1,399.84 -
Non-Convertible Debentures  |Primary Security:
A first ranking pari passu charge by way of mortage to be created by the company over Repayable as below:
all the immovable properties of the company and hypothecation to be created by the 1 yearly instahnent in FY 2025-26 171166
comaptry over all the movable fixed assets of the company. 1 yearly instalment in FY 2026-27 1L 5,500.00
1 yearly instakment in FY 2027-28
Primary:
Pari Passu Charge on the entire Current assets of the Company, present and future
. Collateral:
Cash Credit Second Pari Passu charge on the entire Fixed Assets of the Company with other On Demand 3,320.85 -
Debenture Holders, present and future
Related Pary Unsecured On Denand 7,688.2¢ 2,996.43
Total 45,222.86 14,609.31

* Consists of suppliers line of credit which is a part of term loan facilities extended by the banks.




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as af and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

18.2. Terms of repayrent of total borrowings outstanding as of Mareh 31, 2025 are provided hglow:;

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Borrowings Range of <=1 year 1-3 years 3-5 Years >5Years Total
Effectlve

Rupee Loan 75-93 1,227.71 9,754.34 11,782.01 8329.16 3109322
Foreign currency term loan 3M Euribor+1.25 {presently 526469} 1,399.54 1,399.34
Non-Convertible Debentures 9.5 570.55 1,141.11 - - 1,711.66
Cash Credit 10.1 3,329.85 - - - 3,320.85
Unsecursed Loan 9 7,688.20 - - - 1,688,290

12,816.40 12,295.29 11,782.01 8319.16 45222.86

The above maturity is based on the total principal outstanding gross of the processing fees and charges of ¥ 311.70 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil)

18.3. The Company has obtained secured short term loan from banks wherein the quarterly returns for current assets including inventory, frade receivables and creditors are to be filed. The guarterly

veturns as filed with banks are in agreement with books except below:

Quarter Name of Bank Particulars of | Amount as per| Amount ag Amount of Reason for material discrepancles
Securities books of repertedin | difference
provided accounts the quarterly
returnfstatem
ent

Inventory 8,158.29 7,284.37 873.92 | The discrepancy is on account of the details being submitted on the basis of]
provisional books / financial statements. Adjustments pertaining to cut offs,
forex restatements, Bill discounting (with recourse), etc are done only on

Axis Bank Limited, finali X
March 31, 2025 Indusind Bank  [Trade 2,560.47 1,257.41 1,303.06 |The discrepancy is on account of the details being submitted on the basis of}
Lumited Receivables provisional beoks / financial statements. Adjustments pertaining to cut offs,
forex restatements, Bill discounting (with recourse), etc are done only on
finalization of books of accounts / financial statements.

I[nventory 5.742,29 5,019.25 723.04 | The discrepancy is on account of the details being submitted on the basis of]
provisional books / financial statements, Adjustments pertaining to cut offs,
forex restatements, Bill discounting (with recourse), etc are done oniy on

Axig Bank Liuntted, finalization of books of accounts / financial statements,
Reecaibesiiizu2s lnd:‘si::::el;auk Trade 1,806.36 1,802.12 4,24 |The discrepancy is on account of the details being submitted on the basis of]

Receivables provisional books / financtal statements. Adjustments pertaining to cut offs,
forex restatements, Bill discounting (with recourse), etc are done only on,
finalization of books of accounts / financial statements.

Invertiory 4,395,70 3,985.75 409.95 | The discrepancy is on account of the details being submitted on the basis of
provisional bocks / financial statements, Adjustments pertaining to cut offs,
forex restatements, Bill discounting (with recourse), etc are done only on
finalization of books of accounts / financtal statements.

September 30, 2024 Axis Bank Limited Trada_ 1,834,13 1,821.65 12.48 |The f]i_screpancy is on ﬂccgum of the details .heing submitteFl on the basis l‘)f

Receivables provisional books / financial statements. Adjustments pertaining to cut offs,
forex restatements, Bill discounting (with recourse), ¢t¢ are done only on
finalization of books of accounts / financial statements,

18.4 The Company has satisfied ail debi covenants prescribed in terms of loans from banks and financial institutions. The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable.

18.5 Tenm loans were applicd for the purpose for which the loans were obtamed.




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formetly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31,2025

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19. Lease liabilitics Non-Current Current
As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease Liabilities 88.05 84.77 - -
38.05 84.77 - .
20, Trade payables As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
At amortised cost
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer note 36) 254.78 0.93
Total outstanding dues of crediters other than inicro and small enterprises (Refer Note 36) 8,283.22 1,624.02
Agcceptance given to Bank 183.13 R
8,466.35 1,624.02
8,721.13 1,624.95
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
Particulars Qutstanding as on March 31, 2025
Not Due # |Upto | Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Undispuied
outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 254.78 - - - 254.78
outstandinys dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,7139.76 5,726.59 . - - 8,466.35
Disputed
dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 2,739.76 5,981.38 - - - 8,721.13
Particulars Qutstanding as on March 31, 2024
Not Duc # |Upto 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Undisputed
outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - .93 - - - 0.93
outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 158.41 1.465.61 - - - 1,624.02
Disputed
dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
{ Total 158.41 | 1,466.54 B 5 E 1,624.95
# Includes unbilled trade payables March 31, 2025 : 2 2,665.22 fakhs (March 31, 2024 : ¥ 158.41 lakhs) towards goods / services received for which invoices have not been received.
20.1. Trade payables other than acceptance given to the bank are non-interest bearing. Trade payables are normally settled within 90 days credit terins.
20.2 Includes payable to @ bolding company 2 1,799.25 lakhs (March 31, 2024 ©  1,226.05 takhs). Also Refer note 37
20.3. Refer Note 39 for information about liquidity risk and market risk on trade payable,
21, Other financial liabilities Current
As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
At amortised cost
Employee related dues 25420 38.03
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 111 -
Payable for capital goods 3,490.42 1,169.65
Uthers - 123.23
3,745.73 1,380,91
22, Provisions Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 40) - - 74.46 -
Provision for compensated absenges - - 49.89 8.85
= - 124.35 4.85
321 Reter note 40 tor employew dues payable to officers of the Company
23, Other liabilities Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance from customers - - 75.95 483.15
Statutory dues payable - - 104,97 173.93
- - 180.92 657.08
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RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31,2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24. Revenue from operations

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of products * 11,312.42 168.52
Sale of services *
- Job Work 1,668.07 11.09
Other operating revenues
- Sales of Scrap * 1,367.18 156.37
- Trading sales 321.82 -

14,669.49 335.98
* Represents revenue from contracts with customers
India 14,669.49 335.98
Qutside India - -
Total Revenue from operations 14,669.49 335.98

Revenue (except government grants which are recognized over time) is recognized at a point in time and not over time.

25. Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest [ncome recognised on Financial assets, recogmsed at amortised cost 39.08 2861
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,130.46 140.05
Foreign exchange difference on non-operating assets and liabilities 15.85 -
Miscellaneous Income 264.29 372,62
1,449.68 541.28
26, Cost of materials consumed For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year (Refer note [4) 1,054.05 54.18
Add: Purchases 9,009.60 £,012.49
10,063.65 1,066.67
Less: Inventory as at end of the year (Refer note 14) 1,940.64 1,054.05
Cost of Materials consumed * 8,123.01 12.62

* Excluding ¥6,193.13 lakhs (March 31, 2024 : Nil) of raw materials consumed during trial run.

27. (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Scrap

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year (Refer note 14)
Work-in-progress 80.88 138.28
Forgings scrap [.93 -
Finished goods 9.59 90.48
92,40 228.76
Inventory at the end of the year (Refer note 14)
Work-in-progress 1.841.06 80.88
Forgings scrap 551.57 1.93
Finished goods 2831.98 9.59
2,676.61 92.40
Inventory loss on trial run during the vear 1,434.66 -
(1,137.70) 136.36

28. Employce benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,027.91 277.93
Contribution to provident & other funds 79.54 14.75
Gratuity expense (Refer note 41) { 4.55 -
Staff welfare expenses % 44.18 .56
i 1,156.18 294,24

28.1. The Code on Sacial Security, 2020 (“Code’) relating to employee benefits durin g employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
record any refated impact in the year the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not

be significant.



RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known 2s JMT AUTO LIMITED)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

24. Revenue from operations

Sale of products *

Sale of services *

- Job Work

Other operating revenues
- Sales of Scrap *

- Trading sales

* Represents revenue from contracts with customers
India

Outside India
Total Revenue from operations

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Revenue (except government grants which are recognized over time) is recognized at a point in time and not over time.

25, Other income

Interest Income recognised on Financial assets, recognised at amortised cost
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Foreign exchange difference on non-operating assets and labilities
Miscellaneous Income

26. Cost of materials consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year (Refer note 14)
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory as at end of the year (Refer note 14)
Cost of Materials consumed *

* Excluding ¥ 6,193.13 lakhs (March 31, 2024 : Nil) of raw materials consumed during trial run.

27. (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Scrap

Inventory at the beginning of the year (Refer note 14)
Work-in-progress

Forgings scrap

Finished goods

Inventory at the end of the year (Refer note 14)
Work-in-progress

Forgings scrap

Finished goods

Inventory loss on trial run during the year

28. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident & other funds
Gratuity expense (Refer note 41)

Staff welfare expenses

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
11,312.42 168.52
1,668.07 11.09
1,367.18 156.37
321.82 -
14,669.49 33598
14,669.49 335.98
14,669.49 335.98
For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
39.08 28.61
1,130.46 140,05
15.85 -
264.29 372.62
1,449.68 541.28
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,054.05 54.18
9,021.46 1,012.49
10,075.51 1,066.67
1,952.50 1,054.05
8,123.01 12.62
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
80.88 138.28
1.93 -
9.59 90.48
92.40 228.76
1,829.20 80.88
551.57 1.93
283.98 9.59
2,664.75 92.40
1,434.66 -
(1,137.70) 136.36

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,027.91 277.93
79.54 14.75
4.55 =
44.18 1.56
1,156.18 294.24

28.1. The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during empioyment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been
notified and the fi nal ruleshnterpretatlon have not yet been 1ssued The Com any wxll assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and w111

be significant.




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

29, Finance costs

Interest expenses
Interest on Lease Liabilities
Other borrowing costs

30. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares (Including packing materials)

Processing charges

Repairs and maintenance
-Plant & machineries
-Factory shed & buildings
-Others

Rent

Rates & taxes

Insurance

Bank charges & commission

Postage, telegraph & telephone

[ egal & professional fees
Travelling & conveyance expenses
Payment to auditors®

Brokerage & commission expenses
Vehicle running expenses

Carriage outward expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

a. Details of payment to auditors:

As auditor:
Audit Fees
Limiled Review
In other capacity:
For other Services (Certification fees)

31 Exceptional Items [Income/(Expense)]

Write-back/(Write-off) of Employee Dues
Write-back/(Write-off) of Advances & deposits
Write-back/(Write-off) of Trade Payables
Write-back/( Write-off) of Government Dues
Write-back/( Write-off) of Others

Write-back/A{ Write-off) of Loans

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1,389.16 426.46

7.09 7.14

39.96 3.69

1,436.21 437.29

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 Moarch 31, 2024
2,161.86 58.29
1,308.71 16.50

44.37 1.71
. 4.79
34.14 22.41
32,37 28.47
12.35 43.23
65.01 50.42
2.58 24.27
11.22 6.46
26.64 494.23
37.16 14,55
6.25 20,60
0.34 0.52
11.37 1.74
92.33 -
362.06 150.53
4,208.76 938.72

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2.00 18.60
4.00 2.00
0,25 e
6.25 20.60
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- 552.0%
- 325.85
- 2,628.81
- (217.48)
- 115.81
- 103.55

3,509.23
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32.

For the year ended  For the year cnded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Earnings per equity share (EPS})

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS

Net profit after tax altributable to shareholders {in 2 lakhs) (A) 640,92 2048 14
Denominater for basic EPS*

- Weighted average munber of equity shares for basic EPS {B} 34,56,61,644 5,73,52,055
Denominator for diluted EPS*

- Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted BPS Q) 34,56,61,644 5,73,52,055
Basic earnings per share of face value of T 1/~ cach (in ¥) (A/B) 0.19 3.57
Diluted earnings per share of face value of % 1/- each (in T) {AIC) 0,19 3.57

*For purpose of calculating EPS of the previous year, the allotment made pursuant to NCLT order and subsequent allottment had been considered after eliminating the

sharcholding of erstwhite share capital,

33. Leases
Company as a lessee
The Company has ease contracts for various leasehold lands generally have fease terms between 30 and 99 yeurs,

The Company also has centan leases of buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less The Company applies the *shor-term lease’ recopnition exemptions [or these leases

i} Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:*

Particulars Lenschold Land Total
As at April 1, 2023 - -
Additions 84.02 84.02
Deletions 5 =
Depreciation charpe 4,34 4.34
Depreciation on Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 79.68 79.68
Additions 494.41 494 .41
Deletions ; Modification = S
Depreciation charge 42,43 4243
Depreciation on Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 53L.66 531,66
ii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities znd the movements during the period:

Particulars For the year ended Total

March 31, 2025

At Amortised cost
As at Aapril 1,2023 - -
Additions 84.02 B4 102
Accretion of nterest 7.14 714
Deletions . termunation | madification = &
Pavments 6.39 6.39
As at March 31,2024 84,77 84.77
Additions 290 2.90
Aceretion of interest 7.09 7.09
Deleticns / termination ~ modification - B
Payments .71 671
As at Maich 31,2025 88.05 88.05
Noa-current 85.05 88.05
Current - -
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities on Land is 8.50% p.a. with maturity between 2038 - 2062
The following are the amounts recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:

Particulars For the year ended Total

March 31, 2025

Depreciation expense of nght-of-use assets (Refer Note 6) 42.43 42,43
Interest expense on lease habilities (Refer Note 29) 709 70%
Total amnount recogmised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 49.52 49.52

Ihe Compam had total cash outflows for leases of  6.71 lakhs (March 31, 2024 6.39 Takhs)

34, Segment information

The Company 1s into manufacturing of anto components and the management reviews the performance of the Company as a single operating segment “Auto components” in
accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Seginents” notified pursuant to Companies (Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 Accordingly, in accordance with paragraph 4 of Ind AS 108

no separate segmient information has been furmshed herewith

35, Contingent Liabilities and (ommitments:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Contingent Ligbilities / elaims against the Company not acknowled ged us debis*
(1) Contngent Clam amount {(wrt to delayed submissian not constder) -
{u)  Contingent Clam amount (wi to Government Thues) Excise - -
() Contmgent Clamn amount (wrt to Govermnment Dues) GST -
(v} Defaults m case of TDS due to short deduction/short payment - -
(v).  Capital Cenvat availed in EQU Units, Dharwad - -
(vi). Bank Guarantecs issued by bank on company 's behalf - -
B. Capital and other commitments 4
(1) Estmated amount of cantracts remaining to be executed on capital ac¢ountafid not provided 1o (Net 2,616.56 592478

of advance)

*As per the approved resolution plan, the contmngent Jiabilines and comemttments, clums and o shigatrans, corporate puaranices and legal proceedings imtiated agamst corporate debtor

Faor the year ended

For the year ended

stand extinguished and accordingly no outflow of economue benefits 15 expectell in tespect thercofl Thi: resolution plan further provides that implementation of resolution plan will
not affeat the rights of the company to recover any amount due to the company and e $WM be na’set off of any such amount recoverable by the company against any liability

dischargzed and extinguished
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(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

36 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o each supplier at the end of each
accounting period.
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounting period. 254.78 0.93
Interest due on above - -
Total 254.78 0.93
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the - -

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting period

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment (which have been paid - -
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED
Act 2006.
d) The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
¢} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management.



RAMKRISHNA CASFING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Forwerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Netes to the financlal statements as at and for the year cnded March 31, 2025
37 Related Party Désclosures:
Releted parties where control exists :

() Holding Company (i) Ramlaishna Porgings Limited
(in). Subsidiary of the Parent Company {§) Globe Al India Serviges Limited
(Formerly knewn as Globe Forex & Travel Lad.-Tull 315t
Angust, 2024)

(ii) Multitech Auto Pvt. Lid
(ifi) ACIL, Limited (Amalgamated with Ramirishna
Forgings Limited w.e.f February 20, 2024 vide Hon'ble
NCLT order dated 27 March 2025)
{iv) Rawtkrishna Forgings, LLC, USA
{v} Ramkrishna Forgings Mexico S.A. de C.V, Mexico
(w.e.f August 13, 2024)

(m}. Step down subsidiary of the Parent comparsy (i) Mal Metalliks Pvt. Ltd.

(). Enlerprises aver which Key Management Personnel and their relatives are able to exercise significant infhuenee {0) Kaitbites Private Limited (Ceased with Etfect from
(i Rarikrishna Titagarh Rail Wheels Liited
(iii) Riddhi Porifolio Private Limited
(iv} Dove Airlines Pvt. Ltd
(v} Chefs Harmony Privats Limited

(v} Key Managerial Personnal (i) Chaitanya Jalan
(i} Lalit Kwmiar Khetan
{iii) Rahul Kumar Hagaria
{iv) Mona Bahadur
(v} Sakti Prasad Senapati

(All amounts im INR Lakhs, vnless otherwise stated)

‘The following tnble provides the total amount of fransactlons that have been entered into with velated partios for the relevant financial vear:
SINo. | Name of the Related Party Relationshlp Nature of transactions Transection Ovtstanding as Transaction Qutstandlng as
Amount for the at Amount for the ae
year ¢nded year ended
March 3317 Margh 31, 2024
I Rawkrishna Forgings Limited Holding Company Sales 480861 87932 3661 76.79
Job Work Sele 1,169,725 9.69 19,59
Purchase 12133.11 1,799.25 984,03 1,226.05
Lean from Holding Company 4,260.00 553411 2,594.06 2,208.53
Interest on Loan 361,82 178.80 39.37 5343
ki Globe Al [ndia Services Limited Subsidiary of the Pazent Company Service Expense 2.34 327 16,00 15.95
{Formerly known as Globe Forex & Travel Ltd.-Till 31,08,2024)

ik Multitech Auto Pvt. Lad Subsidiary of the Parent Company | Job work Sales 428,23 N 1.40 141

| Purchase 2,862, 1.212.72 18.16 2148
| Sale of Goeds 6,391, 1,516.83

Purchase of Fixed Assets 199,74 - - -

Sale of Fixed Assels Lat - - -
Loan laken 172500 1,i00.00 530.00 550,00

Repayment of Loan 1173 - =]
Interest on Loai 10248 23.19 0.29 0,26

kv, Mal Metalliks Pt Lid. Step dows Subsidiary of the Parent Sale of Goods 500.36 €033 - -

Company | Purchase 719.3) 136343 . N

Purchase of Fixed Assets A48.81 - -

Job Work 70.26 - “ -

Sale of Fixed Assets 0.92 - - -
| 1.oan taken 225,00 | 651.00 1BG.EZ 136.82

Loan Repaid 3161.82 - +

Interest on Loan 10.17 119 =
V. Mona Bahadur Key Managenal Personal Salary 16.55 143 12.68 G55
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38
A,

39

{All amounts in [NR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial instruments
Financial Assets and linbilities:
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrving values, are set gut helow:

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Carrying Value| Carrying Value

! Fair Value / Fair Yalug
Fiancial Assets
Financial assels carried at amortised cost .
Trade receivables (Refer note 8) 2,56047 141 33
Loans - Non-current (Refer note 9) - -
Other Non-current financial assets (Refer note 10) 32061 114.59
Cash and Bank balances {Refer note 15a and 15b} 6.54 207.90
Loans - Current (Refer nate 9) 231 -
Other Current financiat assets {Refer note 10) 82.43 26.55
Total financial assets carrvied at amortised cost 2,972.36 690.37

Financinl assets at deemed cost
Investment (Refer note 7a)

Financial assets at FYTPL
Investment-Current (Refer note 7b) - .
Taotal financinl assets carried at FYTPL N

Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {QCH
Invesinents* {Refer note 7a) 600 6 00
Total financial assets carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 6.00 6,00

Financial Liabilities
Financial linbilities carried at amortised cost

Short term borrowings {Refer note 18) 12,816.40 437103
Leng term borrawings (Refer note 18) 32,094 76 10,218 28
Lease linbilities (Refer note 19) 88 05 83477
Trade payables {Refer note 20) 8,721.13 1.624 95
Other Current linanctal liabilities (Refer note 21} 3,745.73 1,380.9)
Total financial liabilities carried at amoriised cost 57,466.07 17,699.94

* [nvestment at cost
The {air values of financial assers and habitities are included ar the amount that would be recerved (o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabifity in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used in the previous year

The management has assessed that 1he fair values of trade recervables, cash and bank balances, loans, other financial assets, Trade Payables, Borrowings (inchiding interest acerued). lease liabilines
and Other Financial Liabilities approximate to their respective carrying amounts largely due to the short-term matusity of these instruments. Further, managenient has also assessed the carrying
amount of certain loans bearing {loating interest rates which are a reasonable approximation of their respective fair values and any difference between their carrying amounts and fair values is not
expected to be significant

For financial assets carrled at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to their respective fair values,

Fair value hierarcley:

The group uses the following hterarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques

(1) Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habililies

{ii) Level 2 inputs other than quoted pnces included within Level | that are observable for the asset or tiability, either directly {i e . as prices) or indirectly (i e, denved from prices)
{iii) Level 3 inputs for the asset or liabiiity that are not based on observable market data {unabservable inputs)

The betow table summarises the categories of financinl assets as at March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024 mensured at fair value:

Financial Asset Level | Level 2 Level 3
At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT as at March 31, 2025
- Investments - - 6.00
At fzir value through other comprehensive income {(FVTPL} as at March 31, 2025
1 - B -

At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as at Marech 31, 2024
- Investments - - 6.00
At lair value through other comprehensive ineome { F¥'TPL) as at March 31, 2024
- Investments o 5

Fair valoation method and assumptions:

The fair value of the financial assets and liabililies is inchided at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale The following methods and assumptions are used (o estimate the fair vatues

i) The Group has determined the carrying value of investment ag it's fair value

ii) There has been no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the above periods

7i1) In determining fair value measurement, the impact of potential climate-related matters, including legislation, which may affect the fair value measurement of assets and liabitities in the financial
statements has been considered These risks in respect of climate-related matters are included as key assumptions where they materially impact the measure of recoverable amount, These
assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecas:s in assessing valug-in-use amounts

At oresent. Lthe impacet of climate-related matters is not material to the Grouo's financial statements
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies:

The Group's principal financial liabiltiies compnses borsowings, tr and other payables and other fi | habilities ‘The main purpoese of these financial habilities 15 o finance and support the
operations of the Group The Group's princ:pal financial assets include trade and ather receivables, loans and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

The Group's business activities are exposed to a varnely of nisks including liquidity nisk, credit nsk and market risk The Group seeks to mimmmze potential adverse effects of these nisks on its
financial perforntance and capital Financial nsk activities are identilied. measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives which are summanzed below and are
reviewed by the senicr management
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{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{A) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to risk of financial loss to the Group if customers or counterparties fail to meet their contractual obligations. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(maindy trade receivables).
(i) Credit risk mansgement
(a) Traide Receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the respective departments subject to the Group's established policies, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Customer credit risk
is managed by the Group through its established policies and procedures which involve setting up credit limits based on credit profiling of individna$ custonsers, credit approvals for eohancement of
limits and regular menitoring of important developments viz. payment history, change in credit rating, regulstory changes, industry outlook etc. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in refer note 8. Qutstanding receivables are regularly monitored and an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date on an individual basis for each major customer. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss mode§ fo assess the impairment foss or reversal thereof.

(b) Deposits and financial assets (Other than trade receivables):
Credit risk from bal, with banks is ged by the Group™s treasury department in aceordance with the Group’s palicy,

{B) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk implies that the Group may not be able to meet its obligations associated with its financial lsbilities, The Group manages its liquidity risk on the basis of the business plan that ensures
that the funds required for financing the busitiess operations and meeting financial liabilities are available in a timely manner and in the currency required at optimal costs. The Management regularly
monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position to ensure it has sufficient cash on an ongoing basis to meet operational fund requirements.

Additionally, the Group has committed fund and non-fund based credit lines from banks which may be drawn anytime based on Group's fund requirements. The Group endeavours to maintain a
cautious liquidity strategy with positive cash balance and usdrawn bank lines throughout the year,

The following are the remaining contracieal maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

Contractual maturity of financial Babilities Demand | Upto I year | 1Yearto3 | 3 year to Syear | More than 5§ Total
year years
March 31, 2025
Long Term Borrawings (including current maturities of Jong term borrowings (secured) - 1,798.26 12,295.29 11,782.01 8,329.16 34,204.72
Lease liahilities - - - - 83.05 88.05
Current Borrowings (excluding current maturities of long term borrowings (secured) - 3,329.85 - - - 3,329.35
Trade payable - 8,721.13 - - - 8,72L13
Other financial liabilities - 3,745.73 - - - 3,745.73
- 17,594.97 12,295.29 11,782.01 §417.21 50,089.48
March 31, 2024
Long Term Borrowings (including current maturities of long term bormowings (secured)) 737.07 1,375.00 5,363.28 3,625.00 3,508.96 13,872.24
Lease abilities - - - - 84,77 84,77
Current Borrowings (excluding current meturities of long term borrowings (secured)) - - - - - -
Trade paysble - 1,624.95 - - - 1,624.95
Other firancial lisbilities - 1,380.91 - - - 1,380.91
737.07 4,380.86 5,363.28 3,625.00 3,593.73 16,962.87
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L]

(i}

{a)

[b)

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 39 : Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies: (Contd.)

Market Risk

Market risk i3 the nisk that the fair value of future cash flow of financial instruments may fluctuate because of changes w1 market conditions Market risk broadly comprises three types
of risks namely foreign currency risk, inlerest rate risk and price nisk (for commodities) The above risks may affect the Group’s mcome and expense and profit. The Group's
exposure to and management of these risks are exptained below

Foreign currency risk

The Company operates in international mackets and therefore 1s exposed to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency transactions. The exposure relates primarily to the
Group’s operating activities (when the revenue or expense is denominated in foreign currency) and bomowings in foreign currencies. Majority of the Grovp’s foreign currency
transactions are in USD and Euro, while the rest are in GBP. The imports are only in respect of capital geods, and are denominated in USD, Euro and JPY. The risk is measured
through forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows

The nisk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on its fmancial liabilities including trade and other payables etc, which are mainly in US Dollars , are mitigated through the
natural hedge, as Group’s export sales are predomnantly in US dollars and such econormie exposure through trade and other recewables in US dollars provide natural alignment
Hence, a reasonable variation i the Foreygn exchange rate would not have much impact on the profit / equity of the Group

Foreign currency risk exposure
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting perrod expressed INR 1n lakhs, are as follows

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
INR cquivalent of INR equivalent of
UsD EUR JPY S5GD GBP UsD EUR JPY GRBP

Financial assets

Trade receivables - - - - - - = = -
Foreggn exchange forward contracts - - - - 5 - - N -
Sale foreign currency - - - = B R 5 B -
Net exposure to foreign curreney risk - - - - - - - B .
{assets)

Financial linbilitics

Foreign currency lean 1211352 - 188 32 - 5 - - N .
Trade payables and Capital Goods 178 84 E 3176.64 = 5 - - - -
Foremgn exchange forward contracts - - - - N - = N -
Buy foreign currency - - 5 - R . - R =
Net exposure to loreign currency risk 1,390.36 - 564.96 - - - - - -
(liabilities)
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (1,390.36) - (364.96) - - . = - N
(Assets- Liabilities)

Forcign currency Rate Sensitivity
A fluctuation 1t the exchange rates of 1% with other conditions remaining unchanged would have the following effect on Company's profit or loss before taxes as at
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Empact on profit before tax
|Increase / (Decrease)]
March 31, | March 31,

2025 2024
(/81 sensireity
INR/UISD- [ncrease by 1%6* (13 90) -
INR/UISD- Decrease by 1% 1390 -
EUR sensiviny
INR/ELIR- Increase by 1°9* -
INREUR- Decrease by 1%% -
JPY sensitiviry
INR/JPY- Increase by 196% (5 65) -
INRAIPY- Decrease by 1%96* 565 -

SCrdd sensivity
INR/SGD- Increase by 1%0* - -
INR/ISGD- Decrease by 1%* - -

GRP sensitivity
INR/GBP- Increase by 1%:* - -
INR/GBP- Decrease by 1%5* - -

* Holding all other vanable constant
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(ii)

(a}

(b)

{AH amounts in ENR Lakhs, unless otherw

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on short-term and tong-term floating rate instruments. The borrowings of the

Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows: As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Vanable rate financial liabilities 32,181.36 6,113.28
Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / Jower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Impact on | Impacton
profit profit before
hefore tax tax
[Increase / | [Increase/
{Decreasel] | (Decreaseld

FY 2024-25] FY 2023-24.

Interest Rates - [ncrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) * (160.91) (30.57)
Interest Rates - Decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) * 160.91 30.57

* Holding all other variable constant

(iii) Commodity Price Risk

40.

Commaodity price risk results from changes in market prices for raw materials, mainly steel in the form of rounds and billets which forms the largest portion of Groy
sales

The principal raw materials for the Group products are alloy and carbon steel which are purchased by the Group from the approved list of suppliers. Most of the np1
are procured from domestic vendors Further, a significant portion of the Group's volume is sold based on price adjustment mechanism which allows for recovery of t
raw materiai cost from 1is customers.

Capital management

For the purposes of the Group's capilai management, capital includes issued capital, fres reserves and borrowed capital less reported cash and cash equivalents T
objective of the Group’s capital management is to maintain an efficient capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy and to maximise sh
value. The Group’s policy is to borrow primarily through banks to maintain sufficient liquidity. The Group alse maintains certain undrawn committed credit facilities
additional liquidity. These borrowings, together with cash generated from operations are utilised for operations of the Group. The Group menilors capital on the basi
capital

Particulats March 31, | March 31,
2025 2024

Borrowings (including interest accrued thereon) 44911.16 14,609.31
Less Cash and cash equivaltents (Refer note E5a) (5.53) {198.64)
Less: Current Investments (Refer note 7b) - -
Net debt {A) ) 44,905.63 14,410.67
Equity Share Capital 3,701.00 2.601.00
Other equity, (4,795.55) (5,366.55)
Total equity (B) (1,094.55)]  (2,765.55)
Total capital (A+B)) 43,811,08 11,645.12
Debt- Equity ratio (A / B) (41.03) (521

No changes were made in the objectives policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024

s



RAMEKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Naotes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

41, Employee Benefits
a) Gratuity plan
Funded scheme
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees ("Graiuity Schere™). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratity Act, 1972, Under the Act, every
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled te specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement age.
Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn} for each completed year of service as per the provisions of
the Payment of Graquity Act, 1972. The scheme is funded with an insurance company.

As per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosures of Employee Benefits as defined in the Standard are given below:

Statement of Profit and Loss :
Net employge benefits expense (recognised in Esnployee Cost)

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i. Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss Gratuity (Funded)
For the year For the year
ended ended
Current Service Cost 28,60 4.39
Benefit paid directly by the Company -
Net Interest Cost ' {lrcome} on the Net Defined Benefit Liability  (Asset) (24.05)
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 4.55 4.39
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from:
Change in demographic assumptions - B
Change in financial assumptions 5.82
Lxperience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions} 68.91 (300.81)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense (4.82) 0.10
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 69.91 (300.71)
F'otal Expense 74,46 (296.31)
ii. Bifurcation of Net Liability Gratuity {Funded)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of Defined Bencfits Obligation 132.46 27.25
Fair value of plant assets {416.96}) (323.56)
Net liability (284.50) (296.31})
Current liability (35.iY (12.78)
Non-Current liability (245.40) (283.53)
Net liability (284.50) (296.31)
iii. Changes in the present value of obligation; Gratuity (Funded)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 2728 RIS RS
Cuirent service cost 28.60 439
Interest expense or cost 1.87 21.93
Re-measurement (gain) / loss arising from:
Change in demographic assumptions - =
Change in financial assumptions 5.82 -
Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assuimptions) 68.91 (300.81)
Benefits paid - (2.84)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 132.45 17.25
iv. Changes in the Fair Value of Pian Assets during the year: Gratuity (Funded)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair Value of Plan Asscts as at the beginning 323,56 304.58
livestment Income 25.92 21.93
Transfer in {out) plan assets 62.65
Emplover's Contribution
Return on plan assets | excluding amount recognised in net interest expense 4.82 (0. 10)
Employee's benefit paid - (2.84)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 416.96 323.56
v, Major Categorics of Plan Assets as a percentage of total plan assets Gratuity (Funded)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
100% 1005,

FFunds managed by Insurer




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED}
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025 {All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41 : Employee Benefits: (Contd.)

vi. Actuarial Assumptions Gratuity {Funded)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Discount rate (per annum) 6.70% 7.20%
Salary growth rate (per amwum) 7.00% 7.00%
Mortality Rate {as % of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
MNormal retainment date 50 years 60 years
Withdrawal rate (per annum) % 2%
vii, Sensitivity Analysis Impact of Gratuity (Funded) (Present value of obligation)
As at As at March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025
Assumption Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount Rate (- + 1%0) 126.63 138.70 26,10 28.47
Salary Growth Rate (- + 1%} 138.00 127.0% 2823 26.33

viii, Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation {Undiscounted):

Gratuity {Funded)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 Mavch 31, 2024
| year 5.13 2.48
210 § years 3118 5.17
74.59 18.82

O 10 10 years

Description of Risk Lxposures

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks
in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as tollows:

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A. fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benetit
and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statemenis)

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the shori-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to neet the
liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of
increase of salary in future for plan participants [rom the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s Tiability.

Demographic Risk; The Comparty has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuatioa of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out
to be worse compared fo the assunptios.

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in
repulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of T 20,00 lakhs).

Assel Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets. exposing the Company (o market risk for volatilities. fall in interest
Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occerrence of Iosses relative 1o the expected return on any particular investment.

The breakup of the plan assets into various categories as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 Niarch 31, 2024
LIC"s New Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Plant 100% 100%

‘The assef atlocation for plan assets is determined based on the investment criteria prescribed under the relevant regulations.

b) Provident Fund: r
Contribution towards provident fund are recomputed as expenses in the statement of profit and loss, The Company has a defined contribution plan. Under the defined contribution plan, I
provident fund is contributed to the Government administered provident fund. The Company has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation, other than the contribution |
payable to the provident fund. The expense recogmised during éhe period towards defined congribution plan is ¥ 75.85 Lakhs (March 31, 2024; ¥ 15.03 Lakhs) ‘




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMITED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

42 The company had not given any Loan, lnvestment made and Guarantee given covered under section 186(4) of Lhe Companies Act, 2013,

43 Ratio Analysis and its clements

SL Ratio Numerator Denominater As at Asat % change Remarks
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i Current Ratio {(m times) Current Assets Current Liabilities 068 0.43 60%| The changes due to increased n current
assets
ii [Debt Equity Ratio {in times} Borrowings Shareholder’s Equity (41.03) (5.21) -687%| The changes due to increase on account
of fresh Borrowings
iii | Debt Service Coverage Ratio {in |Eaming available for Debt  |Debt Service 0.40 (G.68), 159%)| The changes dus to increased in eaming
limes} Service *
iv  |Relurn on Equity (in ®a) Profit for the period * Average Shareholder’s -33%) 172%%] -29193| The changes due to increase n profit for
Equity the year
v |Inventory Tumnover vatio (in Cost of Goods Sold Average lnventory 1.43 0.12 1088%| The changes due to increase in operation
times) of the company durng the year
vi | Trade Receivables lumover ratio  |Credit Sales Averapge Trade Receivables 10.86 221 392%] The changes due 1o increase in operation
{in times) of the company during the year
vii  |Trade Payables turnover ratio (in [Credit Parchases Average Trade Payables 1.74 0.49 253%| The changes due to increase in operation
times} of the company during the year
vt |Net Capital turnover Rabeo (in Revete from Operations  |Working Capital (1.82) (0.07) -2385%|  The changes in due lo ingreased in a
tunes) current borrewing
1x | Net Profit Ratio (in ®a) Prafit for the period * Revenue from Operations 425 -435% 1013 The changes in due to increase in profit
{or the yeat
x  {Retrn on Capital employed (in | Pro{it before interest and tax |Capital Emnployed 5% 0% 155%| The changes in due to increase in profi |
%o} L for the year
% |Return on Investment (in %%} Profit After Tax * Shareholder’s Equity -599%%) 53% =211%8|  The changes in due to increased in
earning
* Profit for the FY 2023-24, excludes cxceptional profit
Particuiars Numerator Denominator

S1. No|
i |Current Ratio {in times)

Current Assets

Current Liabilities

il |Debt - Equity Ratio (in times)

Borrowings = Total Bomowings + Enterest acerued but not due on Bormrowings -
Cash & Cash equivatents - Curent kv estinents

Sharcholder's Equity = Total Equity

limes)

i |Debr Service Coverage Ratio (in|

Earmning available for Debt Service = Profii for the year + Finance cost +

Depreciation and amortisation expense + Lossi{Gain) on disposal of property,|borrowings+ Finance cost + Lease payments

plant and equipment 4 Foreign exchange difference on non-operating assets and
liatulities

Debt  Service = Cumrent mmalurities of long-term

# [Retura on Equity {in %0 Profit for the year

Average Sharehelder's Equity = Average of total equity of]
current year and previous year

v |Inventory Tumover Ratio (in

times)

Cost of Goods Sold = Cost of Materials Consumed + Decrease / (Ingrease) in,
inventories of finished goods, work in propress and scrap + Power & Fuel +
Consumption of stores and spares (Encluding packing materials) + Processing
chaiges

Average Inventory = Awerage of Opening and Closing
Taventory

(1 tfimes)

vi |Trade Recenables Turover Raie

Credil Sales
Incentives - Others

Revenue from operations - Subsidies/Government Granis - Export|Average  Trade

Receivables = Average of Trade
Receivables of current year and previous year

(1n times)

vu |Trade Payables Tumoiver Ratio

Credit Purchases - Purchase of Raw Malerials + Power & Fuel + Consumption
of slores and spares (Including packing materials) + Processing charges +
Camage ourward expenses + Export expenses

Average Trade Payables = Average of Trade Payables of]
current year and previous year

Innes)

vinn |Net Capital Turnover Ratio {in

Revenue from Operations

Working Capital = Current Assels - Cuerent Liabilities

ix |Net Profit Ratio {in % )

Profit for the Year

Revenue from Operations

%)

x  |Retum on Capital Employed (in|

Profit before interest and taxes - Profit before Tax + Finance Cost

Capital Employed = Total Equity + Total Borrowings +
Deferred Tax Liabilities

a | Return on Investment(in 2o}

Income fioin Investments  Interest ingomic on investment + Income on fair]
valuation of investment + Dividend income + Profit/(Loss} on sale of investments

Time Weighted Investiments

44 The Company used an accounting software tor maintaning ils books of aceount which has a feature of recording andst rail tedit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year Tor all releyam
transactions recorded in the software, except that audit wrail feature 18 not enabled for certain changes made using privileged / administrative access rights to the SAP database. Further no instance of audit frail
leature bemng tampered with was noted in respect of (he accounting software




RAMKRISHNA CASTING SOLUTIONS LIMFFED (Formerly known as JMT AUTO LIMITED)
Notes to the financial statemcnts as at and for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

435 Other Statutory Information
(i) The Comparry does not kave any Benam) property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for helding any Benam property
{1) The Company does not have any transactions with compantes struck off
() The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet 10 be registered with ROC beyond the statutory persod
(iv} The Company has not traded or mvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
(v} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds te any other person(s} or entity{ies), ncluding foreign entittes (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermedhary shall

(a} dwectly or indirectly lend or invest i other persons or entities identified n any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company has not recewved any fund from any person(s) or entity(1es), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that the Company
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest n other persons or entities identified 1n any manmer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
{v11) The Company has not any such transaction which is nat recerded sn the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 1ax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the lncome Tax Act, 1961
{vin) Title deeds of Immovable Property of the Company are held m the name of the Company
(1x} Carporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company as per provistons of Section i35 of the Compames Act, 2013
ix) The company kas been declared wilful defaulter by banks n the year 2020 -21 and subsequenily, proceeding under 1BC were mitated and pursuant to NCLT order the succeesful resolution plan has been
approved during the financral year 2023-24 by the NCLT Thereafter, the company has net been declared as wilful defaulter

(x1) The company had not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year

46 The Board of Directors in Board meeting held on 16 02 2024 had approved the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of the Mal Metalliks Private Limited and Mulutech Auto Private Limited with Ramkrishina
Casting Solutiens Limited (formerly known as JMT Auto Limuted) as per provision of Sec 179 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Form MGT -14 for the same has been filed before respectsve ROC vide SRN
No - AATO8R156 The draft scheme was placed before the Board and the final scheme of amalgamation 15 yet to be filed with respective NCLT as on the date of Signing of the Balange sheet

47 The Board of Directors with approva! of Shareholders 1n Extra Ordinary General meeting held on 12 03 2024 had approved the Change of Name of the Company, The name of the Company 1 Ramkrishna
Castings Solutiona Limited Company has filed Form MGT -14 wath respective ROC vide SRN No - AA7093951 and Form INC - 24 vide SRN No - AATITT042 Approved by ROC for INC-24 granted durng
the year

48 The Board of Directors with approval of Shareholders i Extra Ordinary General meeting held on 12 03 2024 had approved the Shifting of Registered Office of the Company from the National Caputal Territory
(NCT}) of Delhu to State of West Benga! and Form MGT - 14 has been filed with respective ROC vide SRN No - AA7094563 The Regional Director, Delht had approved the same during the year

49 Certan Sundry Debtors are subject to confirmation and reconciliation However in view of the management the adjusiments, 1f any, ansing out of the reconciliation wall not be matérials and hence.no provisions
1s considered necessary

50 GST habihties for the year has been taken as per books of accounts Change in hability, if any, after audit under the provisions of GST Laws shall be accounted for in the year in wiich the audut 15 compieted In
the opinton of the management/assessee there will be no significant change 1n the lability and will not impact sigruficantly the profitabslity or the financsal position of the company/ assessec

51 There are ne derivative mstrument entered into by the company during the year All the recewvables and payable m foreign currency are unhedged
52 Previous year's figure have been regroupedirectassified wherever necessary to correspond wath the current year's classification/ disclosure
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